
 
 
 

Highways Committee 
 
 
Date Monday 12 December 2022 

Time 1.30 pm 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 November 2022   
(Pages 3 - 10) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Alleged Public Bridleway, Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, 
from Road C28 to grid reference 388757.536877, St-John's-
Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map Modification Order Proposal) - 
Report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods and Climate 
Change and Head of Legal and Democratic Services.   
(Pages 11 - 82) 

6. Alleged Public Bridleway, Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, 
from grid reference 388757.536877 to grid reference 
387576.537170, St-John's-Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map 
Modification Order Proposal) - Report of the Corporate Director 
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services  (Pages 83 - 172) 

7. Alleged Public Bridleway, North Grain Public Bridle Road, from 
grid reference 387576.537170 to C Road C27 (grid reference 
387492.537198), St-John's Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map 
Modification Order Proposal) - Report of the Corporate Director 
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services  (Pages 173 - 244) 

8. Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 



 
 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
2 December 2022 
 
 
To: The Members of the Highways Committee 

 
 Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

Councillor G Hutchinson (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors D Boyes, A Bell, T Duffy, C Kay, K Earley, 
J Higgins, J Howey, R Manchester, E Mavin, B Moist, D Oliver, 
E Peeke, I Roberts, K Robson, A Simpson, A Sterling, 
F Tinsley, M Wilson and D Wood 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Lucy Gladders Tel: 03000 269712 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
At a Meeting of Highways Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Durham on Thursday 10 November 2022 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors D Boyes, C Kay, K Earley, J Higgins, J Howey, G Hutchinson (Vice-
Chair), R Manchester, E Mavin, D Oliver, E Peeke, I Roberts, K Robson, 
A Simpson, A Sterling, F Tinsley, M Wilson and D Wood 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitute members.  
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2022 were confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair.  
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Higgins declared an interest in Agenda Item 8 as it was in his division 
and he was the treasurer for Wingate Community Centre. He noted his intention to 
speak as local member but would withdraw from the meeting during consideration 
of the item.  
 
Councillor Wood declared an interest in Agenda Item 9 as it was in his division. He 
noted his intention to speak as local member and the Chair agreed he could be 
present during consideration of the item.    
 

5 Chester-Le-Street and Birtley Parking & Waiting Restrictions, 
Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy and Growth which advised of the proposed changes to the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) in Chester-le-Street and Birtley and requested that they 
considered the objections made during the informal and formal consultation period 
(for copy see file of minutes).  
 
The Strategic Traffic Manager gave a detailed presentation which included site 
location plans, aerial photos and photographs of the sites and details for the 
following restrictions; 
 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on South Approach leading 
into Bullion Lane on both sides, to prevent obstructive parking and reduce 
congestion. One objection was received in the informal consultation period 
from a local resident who felt they were being penalised. A further objection 
was received from Councillor Fantarrow following the closure of the 
consultation period.  

 

 To extend the existing restrictions either side of Edward Street to prevent 
obstructive parking and improve visibility and traffic flow for approaching road 
users. One objection was received in both the informal and formal 
consultation period from the same resident who felt the proposal would 
isolate tenants and further limit parking space.  

 

 To formalise the existing markings at Elmway as ‘no waiting at any time’ 
restrictions to further prevent obstructive parking and improve traffic flow. 
Three objections were received in the informal and formal consultation period 
from local residents who felt the proposals would move the problem 
elsewhere and felt the double yellow lines were longer than necessary.  

 

 To amend the current ‘no waiting’ element of the existing restriction at Front 
Street to ‘no stopping except taxis, 6pm-6am’. Two objections were received 
in the informal consultation period from local businesses who stressed that 
parking outside their businesses was necessary for quick pick ups and drop 
offs.  

 

 To formalise the advisory markings as ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions, 
which will allow enforcement to prevent obstructive parking and improve 
access/egress within Tuart Street. The informal consultation initially included 
proposals to extend existing permit restrictions into Tuart Street, however, a 
satisfactory in-favour majority was not achieved and these proposals were 
withdrawn. Six objections were received in the informal and formal 
consultation period from local residents, only one directly objected to 
proposed ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions. 

 
Mr Rennie addressed the Committee on behalf of himself and the residents of 
Elmway. He clarified that they did not object to double yellow lines being put in 

Page 4



place but felt the length of the lines was far longer than required. He noted the site 
meeting that took place in May 2021 and advised that Councillor Tracie Smith had 
planned for additional parking at the rear of the garages and had a plan for how this 
would be financed but stated no information regarding this had been received 
since. He noted some residents had mobility issues and explained that one resident 
was housebound and required family to visit daily and access to parking was 
important. He noted he had lived at Elmway for 17 years and was aware of only 
one incident during this time indicating the area was not dangerous. He explained 
the community currently got along well but expressed his concern that the 
implications of the lines could create ill feeling due to vehicles being forced to park 
in other areas of the street. Mr Rennie concluded that he understood the rationale 
for the ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions but requested a further inspection to 
discuss the length of the lines and to discuss the additional parking suggested at 
the rear of the garages, along with a timeline for when the work could be 
implemented.    
 
Councillor Sterling sympathised with the residents of Elmway and noted the 
challenges when restrictions were in a location that included flats. She asked if 
there was anything members could do to support the residents with regards to the 
additional parking at the rear of the garages. The Strategic Traffic Manager advised 
that this was not within his remit, however he was aware that there would need to 
be an understanding of the public utility costs and if the work could fit into the 
Highways timeline. The Traffic Engineer informed the Committee that he had 
spoken with the relevant Highways officer and preliminary designs had been drawn 
up but further discussion was necessary to identify if there was a reasonable 
budget to cover the work.  
 
With regards to the proposals at Bullion Lane, Councillor Sterling asked if the 
residents of Lumley Close had parking outside of their homes. The Strategic Traffic 
Manager advised that they appeared to have driveways and expected any new 
development to include sufficient parking.  
 
Councillor Wood understood the frustration of the residents of Elmway but 
acknowledged that the process for Highways was time consuming however noted it 
was reassuring to hear that Councillor Tracie Smith had been involved. With 
regards to the proposals at Bullion Lane, Councillor Wood asked if there had been 
an objection from the local member. The Strategic Traffic Manager explained 
Councillor Fantarrow had submitted an objection on behalf of the residents, and 
although this had been received outside of the objection period, it had been 
accepted. The Traffic Engineer explained that the report stated that local members 
were in favour of the proposals as there had not been sufficient time to amend the 
report following receipt of the objection from Councillor Fantarrow. It was 
established that Councillor Fantarrow was not present at the meeting. 
 
Councillor Mavin asked if a further site meeting for Elmway was possible as 
requested by Mr Rennie. The Strategic Traffic Manager agreed this could be 

Page 5



arranged if Members felt it was necessary and the location of Elmway could be 
removed from the Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022.   
 
The Legal Officer (Planning and Highways) asked Members to clarify if the site 
meeting was in relation to the proposal that was in front of Committee or if it was to 
consider the area at the rear of the garages where additional parking had been 
suggested. The Strategic Traffic Manager confirmed the site meeting would be in 
relation to the double yellow lines and Mr Rennie agreed.   
 
Councillor Sterling acknowledged five residents from Elmway had attended the 
meeting which indicated their care and proposed a further site meeting be 
arranged. She suggested the location of Elmway be removed from the Traffic 
Regulation Amendment Order 2022 and moved the remaining four locations to be 
endorsed. This was seconded by Councillor Howey. Councillor Boyes felt that 
proceeding with the proposal for Elmway could create ill feeling amongst residents 
and he confirmed that he supported a further site meeting. 
  
Councillor Kay asked if AAP funding had been secured for the additional parking at 
the rear of the garages. The Traffic Engineer advised that the budget for this was 
still undecided. Councillor Wood commented that he was uncomfortable with how 
funding had been described.  
 
The Legal Officer (Planning and Highways) confirmed that the location of Elmway 
would be removed from the Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 as agreed 
by members and that a further site meeting with representatives from Durham 
Constabulary, the local member and residents be arranged to find a compromise in 
the extent of the restrictions.  
 
Resolved 
 
That the location of Elmway be removed from the Traffic Regulation Amendment 
Order 2022.  
 
That the proposal in principle, to amend the Chester-le-Street & Birtley Parking and 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order, excluding the location of Elmway, 
with the final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated 
powers be endorsed.  
 

6 Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney Parking & 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report 
of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy and Growth which advised of the proposed changes to the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) in Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon and Browney and 

Page 6



requested that they considered the objections made during the informal and formal 
consultation period (for copy see file of minutes).  
 
The Traffic Management Section Manager gave a detailed presentation which 
included site location plans, aerial photos and photographs of the sites and details 
for the following restrictions; 
 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions at A690, High Street for the 
extent of the hatched markings to further prevent vehicles from parking in an 
obstructive manner. Three objections were received in the informal and 
formal consultation period from local residents who felt the restrictions were 
too harsh.  

 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on the western side of the 
junction at Sawmills Lane to improve visibility and access/egress for 
approaching road users. One objection was received from a directly affected 
property. 

 
Councillor Tinsley confirmed that he knew the two locations well and asked if a 
negative impact on traffic flow at High Street was anticipated. The Traffic 
Management Section Manager did not foresee any issues with traffic flow but was 
happy to monitor this. He commented that there would be some displacement of 
vehicles but that this would be minor.  
 
With regards to Sawmills Lane, Councillor Tinsley asked if the objection received 
from Stoneacre Garage was on operational grounds. The Traffic Management 
Section Manager noted that no information had been received to indicate this. 
Councillor Tinsley moved the proposal to be endorsed.  
  
In response from a question from Councillor Kay regarding traffic flow at High 
Street, the Traffic Management Section Manager explained that with it being a 
minor junction that any increase in traffic flow would be minor. 
 
With regards to Sawmills Lane, Councillor Kay asked whether parked cars were 
problematic throughout the day or only during school times. The Traffic 
Management Section Manager confirmed vehicles were parked throughout the day 
and were generally visitors to the nearby houses. The Legal Officer (Planning and 
Highways) was confident that the parked vehicles were not parents from the local 
Primary School.  
 
Councillor Howey agreed with the proposals although expressed concern that the 
proposal at High Street risked moving the current problem. Councillor Howey 
seconded the proposals be endorsed.   
 
Resolved  
 

Page 7



That the proposal, in principle, to amend the Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon 
& Browney Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order, with the final 
decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers be 
endorsed. 
 

7 Spennymoor Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation 
Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy & Growth  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy and Growth which advised of the proposed changes to the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) in Spennymoor and requested that they considered the 
objections made during the informal and formal consultation period (for copy see 
file of minutes).  
 
The Strategic Traffic Manager gave a detailed presentation which included site 
location plans, aerial photos and photographs of the sites and details for the 
following restrictions; 
 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions either side of the newly 
developed access road leading to Festival Walk Car Park, as well as either 
side of the access road leading from Holborn/Oxford Road into Aldi, to 
prevent obstructive parking and improve traffic flow. Three objections were 
received in the informal and formal consultation period from local residents 
and businesses.  

 
Councillor Sterling asked if there was an option for permit holders only parking. The 
Strategic Traffic Manager explained this would incur a cost for residents and was 
not deemed necessary. He further explained that there was a criteria for permit 
parking and the location did not meet the criteria.  
 
Councillor Howey asked if the Festival Walk carpark was free of charge. The 
Strategic Traffic Manager confirmed that it was free and there was no limit on the 
amount of time vehicles could be parked.  
 
Councillor Sterling moved the proposals to be endorsed and this was seconded by 
Councillor Mavin.  
 
Resolved  
 
That the proposal, in principle, to amend the Spennymoor Parking and Waiting 
Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order, with the final decision to be made by the 
Corporate Director under delegated powers be endorsed. 
 

Page 8



8 Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill & Deaf Hill Parking & 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report 
of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy and Growth which advised of the proposed changes to the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) in Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill and Deaf Hill 
and requested that they considered the objections made during the informal and 
formal consultation period (for copy see file of minutes).  
 
The Strategic Traffic Manager gave a detailed presentation which included site 
location plans, aerial photos and photographs of the sites and details for the 
following restrictions; 
 

 To introduce ‘limited waiting, Monday-Saturday, 8am-6pm, 1 hour no return 
within 2 hours’ restrictions for the extent of this layby to facilitate short stay 
access to nearby services/facilities and reduce obstructive parking. The bays 
will be unrestricted on an evening to facilitate overnight parking for any 
surrounding residential properties. Two objections were received in the 
informal and formal consultation period from directly affected frontages who 
felt it was unfair for residents who did not have off-street parking.  

 
Councillor Higgins addressed the Committee as local member and thanked the 
officers for bringing the item to the meeting. He advised that complaints had been 
received from the chairperson at Wingate Primary School, residents, and parents, 
regarding congestion and parking. He had witnessed vehicles parking in the layby 
for full days when sufficient off street parking was available. To his knowledge none 
of the properties located on front street including the travel agents had objected to 
the proposal and stated that the Community Centre had car parking facilities. He 
confirmed that he fully supported the proposal as did the Police.  
 
Councillor Higgins left the meeting.  
 
Councillor Sterling expressed concern with users of the community centre as 
sessions for users could last up to three hours but noted Councillor Higgins had 
pointed out that the car park at the community centre had car parking facilities.  
 
Councillor Earley believed it was a firm proposal and that sufficient car parking was 
available in the area and moved the proposal to be endorsed. This was seconded 
by Councillor Tinsley.   
 
Resolved 
 
That the proposal, in principle, to amend the current Wheatley Hill, Wingate & Deaf 
Hill Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order, with the final 

Page 9



decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers be 
endorsed. 
 

9 Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy & Growth  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 
Economy and Growth which advised of the proposed changes to the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) in Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston and requested that they 
considered the objections made during the informal and formal consultation period 
(for copy see file of minutes).  
 
The Strategic Traffic Manager gave a detailed presentation which included site 
location plans, aerial photos and photographs of the sites and details for the 
following restrictions; 
 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on both sides of the junction 
of Newbridge Banks to Pelton Lane. One objection was received in the 
informal consultation period. 

 

 To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions at Station Road to Stony 
Lane. Two objections were received in the informal consultation period from 
residents to felt they would not be able to park outside of their home and 
could affect any future sales for the properties.  

 
Councillor Wood addressed the Committee as local member and confirmed that he 
was in support of the proposals for both locations. With regards to Station Road to 
Stony Lane, he advised that visibility was poor when cars were parked on both 
sides of the junction. In terms of Newbridge Banks/Pelton Lane Junction he 
stressed the main concern was vehicles parked on the side of the road as this 
forced large vehicles and buses to travel on the wrong side of the road. He 
expressed his gratitude for the work that officers had done with the proposals.  
  
Councillor Howey noted the proposals were sensible for safety reasons and moved 
the proposals to be endorsed. This was seconded by Councillor Sterling.  
 
Councillor Robson agreed the proposals made good sense. 
 
Resolved  
  
That the proposal, in principle, to amend the Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston 
Parking and Waiting Restrictions Order, with the final decision to be made by the 
Corporate Director under delegated powers be endorsed. 
 

Page 10



 

Highways Committee 

12 December 2022 

Alleged public Bridleway, Windyside 

Moor Public Bridle Road, from Road C28 

to grid reference 388757.536877, St-

John’s-Chapel, Stanhope.   

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

Definitive Map Modification Order 

Proposal 

 

Report of Corporate Management Team: Alan Patrickson, 
Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and 
Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Weardale 

Purpose of the Report 

1 In this report the Highways Committee is asked to consider all the 
relevant evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way by adding a public 
bridleway in the ward of St-John’s-Chapel, Stanhope starting at Road 
C28 (grid reference 389554.536399) and ending at grid reference 
388757.536877 following the route marked A-B Document A. 

Executive summary 

2 This application seeks to add route with public bridleway status from grid 
reference Road C28 and ending at grid reference 388757.536877 in the 
parish of St-John’s-Chapel and that it be reflected by amending the 
Definitive Map and Statement.  

3 The route to be added connects to the public highway at point A on 
Document A but not at point B on Document A. However, there are two 
other applications being considered today, North Grain and Chapel 
Pasture Public Bridle Roads, which if agreed, would result in a continuous 
through route from C Road C28, St-John’s-Chapel to C Road C27, St-
John’s-Chapel, point A to B on Document B. 

4 Pre consultation correspondence was received from H&H Land and 
Estates in 2019 on behalf of one of their clients who recollects an 
extinguishment order for the route. However, when investigating the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



evidence and checking for extinguishment orders, none was found. No 
further mention of an extinguishment was made during the consultation 
period (Document C.1). 

5 A consultation on the proposed addition was carried out with local 
Councillors, the Parish Council, landowners, and, user groups and 
organisations (Document C.2, C.3 and C.4) which resulted in objections 
and support to the proposed amendment to modify the Definitive Map and 
Statement.  

6 Objections were received from Mr R Jauneika (H&H Land and Estate), 
on behalf of their client Mr Vickers, and from Stanhope Parish Council 
(Document D), and support has been expressed by The British Horse 
Society and The Open Spaces Society (Document E) to the proposed 
addition.  

7 The objections lodged by H&H Land and Estate, on behalf of their client, 
are based on the evidence. In summary, they argue that the evidence 
submitted in support of the application is not sufficient to prove that a 
route was legally established as a public bridleway and also suggest that 
it has been stopped up/extinguished.  

8 Durham County council refutes these objections which are detailed at 
points one and three in Document D due the evidence being Inclosure 
documents. This is considered in more detail at paragraphs 49 to 53 
under the heading of ‘Assessment of the Evidence’. 

9 The objections lodged by Stanhope Parish Council cannot be afford 
weight as the legislation does not allow objections based on suitability 
and/or desirability of the route to be taken into account. 

Recommendation(s) 

10 It is recommended that the Committee resolves to make a Definitive Map 
Modification Order to amend the Definitive Map and Statement by way of 
adding a public bridleway shown A-B on Document A under section 
53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 

11 Note that the Definitive Map Modification Order will be referred to the 
Secretary of State for determination in the event objections are made. or 
confirmed as an unopposed order should no such relevant objections be 
received. 

Background 

Application 

12 A Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) application was 
submitted by Mrs S Briggs, on behalf of the British Horse Society, in July 
2019. Historical documentary evidence was submitted to support the 

Page 12



application, the most important evidence being an the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan. The applicant wishes that the Definitive Map 
and Statement be modified to reflect what they believe should be a public 
bridleway.  

13 The proposed section to be added as a public bridleway is referenced 
A-B and is shown in (Document A).  

14 The application route, at point A in Document A, connects to a public 
highway C Road C28 (grid reference 389554.536399). The route 
terminates at point B on Document A and does not currently connect to 
another public highway. However, there are two other DMMO 
applications, also being consider today, which rely on the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan to demonstrate their historical legally status.  

15 When considering the evidence submitted, together with the other two 
DMMO applications, a continuous through route is created which 
connects to the public highway at both ends (Document B). 

Consultation and Objections 

16 Pre consultation correspondence was received from H&H Land and 
Estates in 2019 on behalf of one of their landowner clients who recollect 
an extinguishment order for the route. However, when investigating the 
evidence and checking for extinguishment orders, none was found.  
(Document C.1). 

17 Consultations on the proposed upgrade were carried out with the Local 
Councillors, landowners/occupiers, and user groups/organisations 
(Document C.2, C.3 and C.4).   

18 Objections were received from Mr R Jauneika (H&H Land and Estate), 
on behalf of their client Mr Vickers, and Stanhope Parish Council, 
(Document D) and support has been expressed by The British Horse 
Society and The Open Spaces Society (Document E) to the proposed 
addition. 

19 The objections lodged by H&H Land circulate around the belief that the 
evidence submitted in support of the application is not sufficient to prove 
that a route was legally established as a public bridleway and/or that there 
may have been a subsequent extinguishment of it.    

20 Durham County council refutes these objections with regards to objection 
point one and three detailed in Document D due the evidence being 
Inclosure documents. This is considered further in paragraphs 49 to 53 
under the heading of ‘Assessment of the Evidence’. 

21 The only considerations that the Council can take into account are 
those that relate to whether the alleged public right way ought to be 
shown as a bridleway. The key legal test section 53(3)(C)(i) is that a 

Page 13



right of way that is not shown in the map and statement subsists or 
is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the 
map relates, being a right of way to which this part applies. Hence, 
it would be unlawful to consider issues such as the suitability or 
desirability of the routes subject of the application. 

The Route 

22 The route to be added starts at grid reference 388575.536877 and 
proceeds in a general north westerly direction. The route passes a first 
order stream, Ramshaw’s Well, and is intersected by Public Bridleway 
No. 90, and passes through three field boundaries. The route terminates 
at grid reference 388575.536877, another field boundary, which is 
labelled ‘Level Gate’ on the Inclosure Plan.  

23 The route is situated on the fell side, from east to west it sits between 390 
and 440 m.a.s.l (metres above sea level), and crosses Open Access land. 
The route was set out in the Inclosure Award as a Horse Road Pack and 
Prime Way and was assigned public bridleway status with a stipulated 
width of 20ft (6.1m). 

24 The surface of the route is predominantly a mixture of peaty moorland 
and pasture. At the eastern end of the route, where it leaves public 
highway Road C28, topographical features in the form of a short, level 
surface slightly banked on the south side, where it follows the lower 
contours of a spur, potentially indicate the existence of the historic public 
bridle road.  As the route progresses north westward, these features 
become less visible.  

Documentary Evidence 

25 Document F –1799 Weardale Inclosure Act 
Park and Forest of Weardale (Act 39 Geo III) – DRC D/CG 
32/40 (previously DCG 13/492) 
 

26 Inclosure Acts were produced to allow for the consolidation of what was 
once open land into sperate parcels that could be individually owned. 
 

27 Document G – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Award 
Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure Award – PAL 
1/3/2 

28 The earliest and most important legal documentary evidence which 
describes and depicts the application route is the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan.  
 

29 Inclosure awards are legal documents, the purpose of which were to 
record the reorganisation and distribution of parcels of land in addition to 
providing legal proof and evidence of ownership. They also typically 

Page 14



created highways. The details described in many Inclosure Awards 
consisted of Inclosure boundaries, public and private highways, and their 
uses, rights of way, water courses and drainage etc, as well as details of 
the landowners. Most Inclosure awards are accompanied by Inclosure 
plans/maps and provide a pictorial view of the details described in the 
Inclosure Award. 

 
30 The award describes Windyside Moor as a Horse Road and Pack and 

Prime Way and states “And we do hereby assign set out and appoint 
another public Horse Road Pack and Prime Way twenty feet in breadth 
as the same is now staked and set out by Stakes and Land Marks and 
which for distinctions sake we shall hereinafter refer to and call by the 
name of “Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road” begining at and leading 
from a gate in the boundary wall between the said Windyside Moor and 
Chapel Pasture called Level Gate and prceeding eastwards through and 
over the allotment hereinafter sety out to Thomas Wears upon the said 
Windyside Moor to and across the said Windyside Moor Private 
Carriage Road and from thence further south eastwards through and 
over the allotments hereinafter set out to William Blackburn and 
Christopher Emerson respectively upon the said Windyside Moor to and 
into the Great Drift Road south of the river Wear”. 

 
31 Document H – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Plan 

      Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure plans – PAL 1/3/2 
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d 
&canvas=t2t2j62sd835  - Sheet 9. 
 

32 On the plan Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road is clearly shown heading 
a north westerly direction from road C28 (labelled Great Drove/Drift Road 
on the Inclosure Plan). It crosses Ramshaw’s Well and passes through 
three field boundaries. These features are shown on both the 1815 
Inclosure Plan and on current day maps. Additionally, the surrounding 
Inclosure boundaries remain, for the most part, as there were some 200 
years ago with only minor alterations (Document H.a – 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Plan and current day Definitive Map overlay). 

33 Document I – 1895 1st Edition OS (Ordnance Survey) 1:2,500 
(www.old-maps.co.uk) Sheet XXXIII.5 & 8 
 

34 OS maps were produced pursuant to an Act of Parliament as an official 
survey of England and Wales. Originally produced under the Board of 
Ordnance to aid with military manoeuvres in preparation for rebellions or 
war in the late 1700s. By the mid to late 1800s OS maps had evolved 
considerably and, due to the expense of surveys and the production of 
revised editions, Ordnance Survey had to diversify. This meant producing 
maps that could be sold to the public as the revenue would help fund 
revisions. It is suggested that historic documents, maps, plans and 

Page 15

https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835


interviews with locals were used to identify, clarify, and depict, through 
use of shading, different classifications of highways. However, there are 
no references that conclusively clarify the methods utilised by the 
surveyors to determine the status of a highway.  

35 Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road is not shown on the above-mentioned 
historic OS map. Neither has it been described in the accompanying area 
book. The details of the features associated with the plots of land are 
described below: 
 

36 Plot 2136 – Rough pasture &c. Plot 2137 –Rough pasture. Plot 2138 – 
Rough pasture. Plot 2172 is described and classified as a public road. 
This road is named Windyside Moor Private Carriage Road in the 
Inclosure Award and Plan. Ordnance Survey maps on their own are not 
conclusive evidence that a public right of way exists. However, as they 
show what was on the ground as at the date of the survey, they are often 
useful corroboratory evidence. However, in this instance even though the 
OS map does not depict Windyside Moor, nor the area book contain 
details of it, this does not mean that it had ceased to exist legally.  

 
37 Document J – Current Definitive Map  

                         https://www.durham.gov.uk/definitivemap 
 

38 The route being applied for, which is documented and shown in the 
Inclosure Award and Plan, has been highlighted in red on an extract of 
Durham County Councils Definitive Map. However, the Definitive Map 
itself does not show the physical existence of the application route.  

 
39 Document K – Current OS Maps 

                                   www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk 
 
40 As above 
 
41 Document L – Photographic evidence 

42 The photographic evidence provides a visual representation of the 
application route.  

Legal Framework 

43 Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, the County Council as Surveying Authority has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under review and is required to make a 
Modification Order under Section 53 (3)(c)(i) on the discovery by the 
authority of evidence which when considered with all other relevant 
evidence available to them shows that a right of way which is not shown 
in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist 
over land in the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to 
which this part applies.  

Page 16

https://www.durham.gov.uk/definitivemap
http://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/


44 Section 32 of the Highways Act 1980 deals with the consideration of 
documentary evidence when determining whether a highway has been 
dedicated. It allows for any maps, plans or history of a locality or other 
relevant document to be tendered in evidence and for appropriate weight 
to be placed on the document including the antiquity of the document, the 
status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it was created 
and the source from which it has been stored and produced. 
 

45 Once a highway comes into existence, it can only cease to be a highway 
in certain circumstances, such as by way of a formal stopping up 
procedure.  The fact that the highway may have fallen into disrepair, 
disuse and/or seems physically to not exist at all has no impact upon its 
status as highway. 

46 The Human Rights Act is of relevance. Whilst article 1 to the first protocol 
(peaceful enjoyment of property) and article 8 (right to respect for family, 
private life and home) are engaged, it is important to note that these rights 
are qualified, not absolute, which means that they can be interfered with 
in so far as such interference is in accordance with domestic law and is 
necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights and 
freedoms of others.  It is considered that any interference occasioned by 
the making of a Modification Order is both in accordance with domestic 
law (the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981) and is in the public interest 
as it is necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights 
and freedoms of others, namely the public who wish to use the way. 

 
47 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires public authorities when 

exercising their functions to have due regard to the need to i) eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct, ii) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and 
iii) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share that characteristic.  In this 
instance, officers have assessed all relevant factors and do not consider 
that there are any equality impacts identified. 

 
48 Should Members resolve that a Modification Order be made in 

accordance with the above legislation, this is merely the start of the legal 
process. Once a Modification Order is made, it must be publicised, and 
the owners will have an opportunity to formally object to it. Should 
objections be received, the Modification Order would have to be referred 
to the Secretary of State who would usually hold a Public Inquiry before 
deciding upon whether or not to confirm the Modification Order. 

 
Assessment of the evidence 

49 The County Council, as Surveying Authority, must make a decision in 
accordance with the case law and relevant legislation, in particular the 

Page 17



provisions of the 1981 Act and the Human Rights Act 1998.  The only 
considerations that the Council can take into account are those that relate 
to whether the alleged public right of way that is not shown in the map 
and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in 
the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to which this part 
applies. It would be unlawful to consider issues such as the suitability or 
desirability of the routes subject of the application. 

50 In this case it is considered that the most important evidence is the 1815 
Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan (Documents G & H).  The Inclosure 
Award created a Horse Road or Sack and Seem Way and also 
specifically created a public bridleway.  
 

51 Whilst the other map-based evidence does not show the physical 
existence of the route, less weight must be afforded to these in 
accordance with Section 32 of the Highways Act as they were not 
produced for the purposes of showing the status of the route but for other 
purposes, such as taxation. 

52 The objectors have not submitted any evidence of their own which would 
contradict the above Inclosure Award and Plan evidence.  Instead, the 
objections have focussed on either; the evidence submitted in support of 
the application not being sufficient to prove that a route was legally 
established as a public bridleway, and, the suitability and desirability.  
However, it is considered that none of the objections are sufficient to 
undermine or displace the evidential force of the Inclosure Award which 
is sufficiently clear and precise to demonstrate that a Bridleway was 
created along the route claimed. Furthermore, despite the anecdotal 
evidence as to a stopping up of the route, no such order has been located. 
Additionally, the legislation does not allow objections based on suitability 
and/or desirability to be taken into consideration when determining 
historical documentary evidence based applications 

53 Therefore, the lack of a public bridleway at the location shown in 
Document A needs to be rectified and it is recommended that the route 
be added to the Definitive Map and Statement as a public bridleway in 
accordance with the application. 

 

Main implications 

Maintenance 

54 If this route is added to the Definitive Map as a Public Bridleway, the 
County Council as Highway Authority will become responsible for the 
maintenance of the surface in line with its status. 

 

Page 18



Conclusion 

55 It is considered, after examining all of the available evidence, that on the 
balance of probability the route under investigation known as Windyside 
Moor Public Bridleway meets the test of section 53(C)(i) and a Definitive 
Map Modification Order should therefore be made to update the Definitive 
Map and Statement to record it as a bridleway. 

Background papers 

 ..\DMMO Application & Evidence 

Other useful documents 

 Previous Cabinet reports / None 

Author(s) 

Josephine Upchurch   Tel:  03000 365341 

Mike Ogden     Tel:  03000 265331 

Neil Carter     Tel:  03000 269722 

  

Page 19

https://durhamcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/personal/josephine_upchurch_durham_gov_uk/Documents/Draft%20and%20Final%20HC%20Reports%20and%20Docs/St-John's-Chapel%20-%20Lot%201%20-%20Windyside%20Moor,%20Chapel%20Pasture%20&%20North%20Grain/Windyside%20Moor/DMMO%20Application%20&%20Evidence


Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

See paragraphs 43, 44, 45, 46, 47 and 48. 

Finance 

Durham County Council will be responsible for the initial installation of furniture 

associated with the upgraded legal status for the first six months and future 

maintenance of the surface to bridleway standards. 

Consultation 

See paragraphs 5 and 17 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

See paragraph 47 

Climate Change 

N/A 

Human Rights 

See paragraph 46 

Crime and Disorder 

N/A 

Staffing 

N/A 

Accommodation 

N/A 

Risk 

N/A 

Procurement 

N/A 

  

Page 20



Appendix 2:  Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road Summary Sheet 
& Application Form A 

 

 

Page 21



  

Page 22



Appendix 3:  Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road Application (as 
submitted by the applicant) 

 

Page 23



 

  

 

Page 24



84

86

90

77

35

42

87

72

69

92
83

80

44

74 45

75

73

89

85

79

41

81

78

76

88

716768 4

39

82

91

70

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

Definitive Map 
Modification 

Application 3/19/098 
Windyside Moor

Public Bridle Road

Area Postcode/s
DL13 1NN, DL13 1NW

DL13 1NX

¯

DMMO Application Route

B

A
Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



84

86

90

77

8774

72

92

69

83
62

46

80

65

44

93

91

42

75

73

4589

85

61

79

81

67

71

78

64

76

4

88

68
63

82

70

66

64

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

DMMO Application 
Routes 
3/19/098 
3/19/097
3/19/096

Area Postcode/s
DL13 1NN, DL13 1NW
DL13 1NX, DL13 1RL

¯

DMMO Application Routes 
(3)

B

A

Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

The Church Commissioners for England    27th September 2022 

       

        
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway –Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 33

josephine.upchurch
Typewritten text
Landowners and Owner/Occupier



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 

 

Mr        27th September 2022 

       

 
Dear Mr

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 

Page 34



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

         

          

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 35



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 

 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

        

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 36



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                            uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - BHS (Access) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan Windyside

Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 37

josephine.upchurch_1
Typewritten text
Organisations and User Groups



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

            27th September 2022 

         

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 38



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To: .uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Byways & Bridleways - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 39



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

Byways and Bridleways Trust      27th September 2022  

     

     
To Whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 40



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                          
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs  (BHS Local) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 41



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 

Mrs       27th September 2022 

              

        
Dear Mrs 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 42



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                           
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs (BHS Local) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 43



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 

Mrs       27th September 2022 

            

     
Dear Mrs 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 44



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                           .uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Ms (Open Spaces) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 45



Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 

 
Ms                      27th September 2022 

 

          
Dear Ms

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 46



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                           .com
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mr  (Ramblers) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-5,000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mr
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 47



Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

            27th September 2022 

         

           
 
Dear Mr

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 48



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                           .com'
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Clerk (SPC) - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan Windyside

Moor PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR 1-
5,000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 49

josephine.upchurch_2
Typewritten text
Local Councillors and Parish Council



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

Ms (Clerk)        27th September 2022 

       

        

Ms 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 50



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                            Cllr 
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr  - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan Windyside

Moor PBR 1-5,000.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 51



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

Councillor      27th September 2022 

        
 

Dear Cllr 

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 

Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 52



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:42
To:                                                            Cllr
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-

Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr - 3-19-098.pdf; CL Plan

Windyside Moor PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Windyside Moor PBR
1-5,000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 53



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 
 
 
 

Councillor      27th September 2022 

        

Dear Cllr

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Windyside Moor 

Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



From:                                                      com
Sent:                                                         26 October 2022 21:06
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Follow Up Flag:                                     
Flag Status:                                            
 
Dear Josephine
 
Following the Stanhope Parish Council mee�ng I have been asked to send the comments from the
councillors.
 
The councillors wish to object to all three applica�ons that have been sent.
 
Concerns are raised about 4x4 vehicles and motorbikes also using these possible routes.
 
If the fields have cows and young calves in it can be dangerous as cows are very protec�ve and there
have been many cases where peoples lives have been lost.
 
Gates could be le� open or accidentally le� open causing much work for the landowner/farmer
sor�ng stock out.
 
Have the routes actually been walked as some of the ground is unsuitable for horses.
 
The ground behind Pinfold Farm, St Johns Chapel has a beck to cross with a deep gu�er so is very
unsuitable.
 
The councillors do not see the point of adver�sing new routes when there are plenty of exis�ng
routes that need maintaining.
 
Kind regards
 

Clerk to the Parish Council
 
 
 
 
 
From: Josephine Upchurch <josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk> 

 Sent: 17 October 2022 09:47
 To: .com

 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Dear Ms
 

Page 58



The British Horse Society is an Appointed Representative of South Essex Insurance Brokers Limited 

 who are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Registered Charity Nos. 210504 and SC038516.  A company limited by guarantee. Registered in England & Wales No. 444742 

Patron Her Majesty The Queen 

 

 

 

 

Fulfilling your passion for horses 

The British Horse Society 

 

Email:  access@bhs.org  

Tel:  

 

 

 

 

 

To: 

Josephine Upchurch 

Definitive Map Officer 

Public Rights of Way 

Durham County Council, 

County Hall, 

Durham 

DH1 5UQ 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–North Grain Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/096) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/097) 

 

Dear Josie 

 

Response from the British Horse Society 

 

The British Horse Society fully supports this proposal to add bridleways to the above three areas known as 

Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, North Grain Public Bridle Road and Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road.   

 

The routes were set out and appointed some 200 plus years ago in the Inclosure of 1815, a legal document to this 

day.  It is obvious to us that this Bridleway fell into disuse many years ago when there weren’t many leisure 

horses around as people did not have the means to care for them.  

 

These three routes link cul-de-sac bridleways 90 and 84 to the C28 road (Swinside) and the C27 road (Harthope 

Road) 

This proposal will bring greater safety for those who walk, ride horses and cycle and the future generations can 

also enjoy them. 

 

 - Access and Bridleways Officer 

On Behalf of ‘The British Horse Society’ (Durham) 

Page 59



From:                                                      .uk>
Sent:                                                         29 September 2022 13:12
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   [EXTERNAL]:Re: Consulta�on Le�er - Windyside Moor Public

Bridle Road, St-Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Dear Josephine
 
Thank you for your consulta�on le�er.
 
The Open Spaces Society supports this modifica�on.
 
Yours sincerely
 

Open Spaces Society
Local Correspondent for Teesdale & Wear Valley Districts in Co Durham
 
From: Josephine Upchurch
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:41 PM
To: .uk
Cc: Dagmar Richardson
Subject: Consultation Letter - Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/098
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham

Page 60



DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 
 

Customer Notice

We have recently updated our terms and conditions for all our services, including making some important updates to our
privacy notices. To find out more about how we collect, use, share and retain your personal data, visit:
www.durham.gov.uk/dataprivacy 

Help protect our environment by only printing this email if absolutely necessary. The information it contains and any files transmitted with
it are confidential and are only intended for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. It may be unlawful for you to use, share or
copy the information, if you are not authorised to do so. If you receive this email by mistake, please inform the person who sent it at the
above address and then delete the email from your system. Durham County Council takes reasonable precautions to ensure that its
emails are virus free. However, we do not accept responsibility for any losses incurred as a result of viruses we might transmit and
recommend that you should use your own virus checking procedures.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Heading

Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road 

DMMO 

Application Evidence

Ref. 3/19/098

P
age 63



Historical Documentary Evidence

Document F – 1799 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Act

P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



Document G – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Award

P
age 69



Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road Transcription

And we do hereby assign set out and appoint another public Horse Road Pack and Prime Way twenty feet in breadth as the

same is now staked and set out by Stakes and Land Marks and which for distinctions sake we shall hereinafter refer to and

call by the name of “Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road” beginning at and leading from a gate in the boundary wall

between the said Windyside Moor and Chapel Pasture called Level Gate and proceeding eastwards through and over the

allotment hereinafter sety out to Thomas Wears upon the said Windyside Moor to and across the said Windyside Moor Private

Carriage Road and from thence further south eastwards through and over the allotments hereinafter set out to William

Blackburn and Christopher Emerson respectively upon the said Windyside Moor to and into the Great Drift Road south of the

river Wear.

P
age 70



P
age 71



And we do hereby direct and award that all the said several Horse roads or Pack and Prime ways hereinbefore

by us set out and appointed shall for ever hereafter be and continue in the narrowest parts thereof respectively of

the breadth of twenty feet statute measure and that it shall and may be lawful to and for all persons whomsoever

at all times hereafter to pass and repass in upon through over and along the same respectivley on foot and on

horseback only at their free wills and pleasures. And we do hereby order direct and award that the present and

all future owners or occupiers of the said several allotments or parcels of ground through over or along which any

of the said several Horse Roads or Pack and Prime ways are set out as aforesaid shall respectivley within twenty

days now next ensuring make and place and forever thereafter uphold maintain and keep or repair good and

sufficient well going gates on the line of all such last mentioned Road in the fences of their several and respective

allotments for the more commodious enjoyment of the same roads respectivley.

Uses of the Public Bridle Roads

P
age 72



Document H – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan and Current Definitive Map Overlay

P
age 73



Document H.a – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan and Current Definitive Map Overlay

P
age 74



B

A

Document I – 1895 1st Edition OS (Ordnance Survey) 1:2,500 and Area Book Stanhope Parish 

Forest Quarter 

P
age 75



P
age 76



Document J – Current Definitive Map 

B

A

P
age 77



Document K – Current Map (Magic Map)

P
age 78



Document L – Route Photographs

At the easterly end of the application route FP

46 onto the road. Track through field with FP 46.

P
age 79



Through a gate in the wall leading away from FP

46 and towards BW 90.

Old Stone Gate Post after the current Bridleway

90.

P
age 80



The current Bridleway 90 crossed by Windyside 

Moor Public Bridleway. The Gate on the western edge of Bridleway 90.

P
age 81



The Reservoir, the Scots Pines are at the western

side.

Level gate, the western end of the route, close to

the stream looking east to the Scots Pines,

heading for the Reservoir.

P
age 82



 

Highways Committee 

12 December 2022 

Alleged public bridleway, Chapel 

Pasture Public Bridle Road, from grid 

reference 388757.536877 to grid 

reference 387576.537170, St-John’s-

Chapel, Stanhope.   

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

Definitive Map Modification Order 

Proposal 

 

Report of Corporate Management Team: Alan Patrickson, 
Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and 
Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Weardale 

Purpose of the Report 

1 In this report the Highways Committee is asked to consider all the 
relevant evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way by adding a public 
bridleway in the ward of St-John’s-Chapel, Stanhope starting at grid 
reference 388757.536877 and ending at grid reference 387576.537170 
following the route shown in Document A. 

Executive summary 
 

2 This application seeks to add a route with public bridleway status from 
grid reference 388757.536877 and ending at grid reference 
387576.537170 in the ward of St-John’s-Chapel, in the parish of 
Stanhope to the Definitive Map and Statement.  
 

3 Although the route applied for incorporates sections of two existing Public 
Bridleways it does not connect to any other Public Rights of Way, but 
when considered with the two other applications, Windyside Moor and 
North Grain Public Bridle Roads also before Members today, they would 
result in a continuous through route from public highways C Road (C28), 
St-John’s-Chapel to C Road (C27), St-John’s-Chapel (Document B). 

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



4 A pre consultation objection was received from a Ms J Martin (affected 
landowner) in 2019 shortly after receiving a Notification Form B when the 
application was submitted (Document C.1). 

5 A consultation on the proposed addition was carried out with local 
Councillors, the Parish Council, landowners, and, user groups and 
organisations (Document C.2, C.3 and C.4) which resulted in objections 
and support to the proposed amendment to modify the Definitive Map and 
Statement.  

6 Objections were received from Mr D Hughes (one of the landowners 
affected) and Stanhope Parish Council (Document D), and support has 
been expressed by The British Horse Society and The Open Spaces 
Society (Document E) to the proposed addition.  

7 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council have not been based on the evidence submitted in support of the 
application but rather on the suitability and/or desirability of the route.  

8 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council cannot be afforded weight in the assessment of the application 
as the legislation does not allow for objections based on suitability and/or 
desirability.  

Recommendation(s) 

9 It is recommended that the Committee resolves to make a Definitive Map 
Modification Order to amend the Definitive Map and Statement by way of 
adding a public bridleway under section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. 

10 Note that the Definitive Map Modification Order will be referred to the 
Secretary of State for determination in the event objections are made or 
confirmed as unopposed if no such objections are received. 

Background 

Application 

11 A Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) application was 
submitted by Mrs S Briggs, on behalf of the British Horse Society, in July 
2019. Historical documentary evidence was submitted to support the 
application, the most important evidence being the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan published. The applicant wishes that the 
Definitive Map and Statement be modified to reflect what they believe 
should be a public bridleway.  

12 The proposed public bridleway to be recorded as a public bridleway is 
referenced A-B in (Document A).  

Page 84



13 The application route, at point A and B in Document A, does not currently 
connect to another public highway. However, there are two other DMMO 
applications also being considered today, which also rely on the 1815 
Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan, that the applicant believes were 
legally set out. The three applications together, all documented in the 
1815 Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan, connect to create a continuous 
through route. This continuous through route connects to public highways 
at points A and B, now C Roads C28 and C27 respectively, see 
Document B.  

14 When considering the evidence that has been submitted in relation to this 
application, it is clear that a public bridleway was legally set out. When 
considering the evidence that has been summitted in support of this 
application and in conjunction with the other two DMMO applications, it is 
clear that a continuous through route, with public bridleway rights, was 
legally created with both ends terminating on a public highway. 

Consultation and Objections 

15 A pre consultation objection was received from a Ms J Martin (affected 
landowner) in 2019 shortly after receiving a Notification Form B when the 
application was submitted (Document C.1).  

16 Consultations on the proposed upgrade were carried out with the Local 
Councillors, landowners/occupiers, and user groups/organisations 
(Document C.2, C.3 and C.4).   

17 An objection was received from Mr D Hughes (affected landowner) and 
Stanhope Parish Council (Document D), and support has been 
expressed by The British Horse Society and The Open Spaces Society 
(Document E) to the proposed addition. 

18 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council do not refute the evidence submitted in support of the application 
but instead have been based on the potential suitability and/or desirability 
of the route.  

19 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council cannot afforded weight in the assessment of the application as 
the legislation does not allow for objections based on suitability and/or 
desirability.  

20 The only considerations that the Council can take into account are 
those that relate to whether the alleged public right way ought to be 
shown as a bridleway as in accordance with the legal test in  section 
53(3)(C)(i) that a right of way that is not shown in the map and 
statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over in land 
in the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to which 
this part applies.  It would be unlawful to consider issues such as 
the suitability or desirability of the routes subject of the application. 

Page 85



 

 

The Route 

21 The route to be added continues from Windyside Moor Public Bridle 
Road, labelled Level Gate on the Inclosure Plan, and proceeds in a 
general westerly direction. The route is intersected by PRoW 86 and 85, 
public footpaths, and follows sections of public bridleways 84 and 77. It 
traverses several first order tributaries, Daddryshield Burn (formerly East 
Cleugh) and Greenlaws Hush, and crosses several boundaries. The 
route terminates at grid reference 387576.537170 see Document A, point 
B.  

22 The route is situated on the fell side, from east to west it sits between 380 
and 410 m.a.s.l (metres above sea level). The route was set out in the 
Inclosure Award as a Horse Road or Pack and Prime Way and was 
assigned public bridleway status with a stipulated statutory width of 20ft 
(6.1m). 

23 The surface of the route is a mixture of peaty, and in places boggy, 
moorland and rough pasture. At the eastern end of the route, where it 
joins North Grain Public Bridle Road near Harthope Burn, it is mostly 
rough pasture.  

Documentary Evidence 

24 Document F – 1799 Weardale Inclosure Act 
 Park and Forest of Weardale (Act 39 Geo III) – DRC D/CG  
32/40 (previously DCG 13/492) 

 
25 Inclosure Acts were produced to allow for the consolidation of what was 

once open land into sperate parcels that could be individually owned.  
 
 

26 Document G – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Award 
Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure Award – PAL 
1/3/2. 

27 The earliest and most important legal documentary evidence which 
describes and depicts the application route is the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan.  
 

28 Inclosure awards are legal documents, the purpose of which were to 
record the reorganisation and distribution of parcels of land in addition to 
providing legal proof and evidence of ownership. They also typically 
created Highways. The details described in many Inclosure Awards 
consisted of Inclosure boundaries, public and private highways, and their 
uses, rights of way, water courses and drainage etc, as well as details of 

Page 86



the landowners. Most Inclosure awards are accompanied by Inclosure 
plans/maps and provide a pictorial view of the details described in the 
Inclosure Award. 

 
29 The award describes Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road as a Horse Pack 

and Prime Way and states “And we do hereby assign set out and 
appoint another public Horse Pack and Prime way twenty feet in breadth 
as the same is now staked and set out by stakes and land marks and 
which for distinctions sake we shall hereinafter refer to and call by the 
name of Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road beginning at and leading 
from the said gate in the boundary wall between the said Chapel Pasture 
and Windyside Moor called Level gate and proceeding North 
Westwards through and over the third allotment hereinafter set out to 
Peter Allison upon the said Chapel Pasture 10 and into the said Chapel 
Pasture East Private Carriage Road and from thence along the said last 
mentioned road to its junction with the said Chapel Pasture West Private 
Carriage Road and from thence North westwards through and over the 
third allotment hereinafter set out to John Heatherington of Dadry Shiels 
(sic) upon the said Chapel Pasture and through and over the allotment 
hereinafter set out to Isaac Peat upon the same pasture to ancient gate 
in the Boundary Wall between the said Chapel Pasture and Harthope 
Moor”. 

 
30 Document H – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Plan 

      Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure plans – PAL 1/3/2 
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d 
&canvas=t2t2j62sd835  - Sheet 9. 
 

31 On the plan Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road is clearly shown heading 
in a north westerly direction from level gate. It crosses East Cleugh (now 
named Daddryshield Burn on current maps), Greenlaws Hush and White 
Springs, passes through several field boundaries and follows sections of 
public bridleways 84 and 77 (labelled on the Inclosure plan as Chapel 
Pasture East and Chapel Pasture West Private Carriage Roads. These 
features are shown on both the 1815 Inclosure Plan and on current day 
maps. Additionally, most of the surrounding Inclosure boundaries that 
were erected some 200 years ago, as well as the physical features, 
remain today with only minor alterations (see document H.a). 

32 Document H.a – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Plan and current day 
Definitive Map overlay). 

33 This overlay shows the alignment of the physical features, such as field 
boundaries, highways and water courses, that are depicted on the 
Inclosure Plan and current day maps and demonstrates the accuracy of 
the location of the routes being referred to.  

Page 87

https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835


34 Document I – 1895 1st Edition (Revised) OS (Ordnance Survey) 
1:2,500 (www.old-maps.co.uk) Sheet XXXIII.13 and Area Book 
Stanhope Parish Forest Quarter DRO D/CG13/322 
 

35 OS maps were produced pursuant to an Act of Parliament as an official 
survey of England, Wales and Scotland. Originally produced under the 
Board of Ordnance to aid with military manoeuvres in preparation for 
rebellions or war in the late 1700s. By the mid to late 1800s OS maps 
had evolved considerably and, due to the expense of surveys and the 
production of revised editions, Ordnance Survey had to diversify. This 
meant producing maps that could be sold to the public as the revenue 
would help fund revisions. It is suggested that historic documents, maps, 
plans and interviews with locals were used to identify, clarify, and depict, 
through use of shading, different classifications of highways. However, 
there are no references that conclusively clarify the methods applied by 
the surveyors to determine the status of a highway.  

36 Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road is shown on the above-mentioned 
historic OS map. However, its description has not been included in the 
accompanying area book. The details of the features associated with the 
plots of land are described as - Plot 2122 – Rough pasture. Plot 2123 – 
Rough pasture. Plot 2173 –Public Road. Plot 2178 – Public Road. Plot 
2118 – Rough Pasture. Plot 2114 – Rough Pasture.  
 

37 The plots described as being public roads align with Chapel Pasture East 
and Chapel Pasture West Private Carriage Roads mapped on the 
Inclosure Plan. The other plots that have been highlighted do not contain 
mention of any roads, tracks or bridleways. However, tracks other than 
the route being applied for have been mapped but not mentioned. As with 
the Windyside Moor application, plots that contained tracks and water 
courses for example have been attributed a description of ‘Rough Pasture 
&c’, &c being the equivalent to etc to denote that there are other features 
associated with the plots. It is unclear as to why the ‘&c’ was omitted from 
the description of certain plots that have other features associated with 
them. 
 

38 Ordnance Survey maps on their own are not conclusive evidence that a 
public right of way exists, but represent evidence of what was on the 
found at the time and therefore their evidential value is corroboratory.  

 
39 Document J – Current OS Maps  

                         https://magic.defra.gov.uk/magicmap.aspx 
 
 

40 The route being applied for, which is documented and shown in the 
Inclosure Award and Plan, has been highlighted in red on an extract of 
Durham County Councils Definitive Map. However, the Definitive Map 
itself does not show the physical existence of the application route.  

 

Page 88

https://magic.defra.gov.uk/magicmap.aspx


 
41 Document K – Google Imagery 

                                   
42 As above 
 
43 Document L and M – Photographic evidence (including 2016 

google street view) 

44 The photographic evidence provides a visual representation of the 
application route. Some of the physical features that may have once been 
associated with the historic route may not be visible/no longer insitu.  

Legal Framework 

45 Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, the County Council as Surveying Authority has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under review and is required to make a 
Modification Order under Section 53 (3)(c)(i) on the discovery by the 
authority of evidence which when considered with all other relevant 
evidence available to them shows that a right of way which is not shown 
in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist 
over land in the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to 
which this part applies.  

46 Section 32 of the Highways Act 1980 deals with the consideration of 
documentary evidence when determining whether a highway has been 
dedicated. It allows for any maps, plans or history of a locality or other 
relevant document to be tendered in evidence and for appropriate weight 
to be placed on the document including the antiquity of the document, the 
status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it was created 
and the source from which it has been stored and produced. 
 

47 Once a highway comes into existence, it can only cease to be a highway 
in certain circumstances, such as by way of a formal stopping up 
procedure.  The fact that the highway may have fallen into disrepair, 
disuse and/or seems physically to not exist at all has no impact upon its 
status as highway. 

48 The Human Rights Act is of relevance. Whilst article 1 to the first protocol 
(peaceful enjoyment of property) and article 8 (right to respect for family, 
private life and home) are engaged, it is important to note that these rights 
are qualified, not absolute, which means that they can be interfered with 
in so far as such interference is in accordance with domestic law and is 
necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights and 
freedoms of others.  It is considered that any interference occasioned by 
the making of a Modification Order is both in accordance with domestic 
law (the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981) and is in the public interest 
as it is necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights 
and freedoms of others, namely the public who wish to use the way. 

 

Page 89



49 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires public authorities when 
exercising their functions to have due regard to the need to i) eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct, ii) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and 
iii) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share that characteristic.  In this 
instance, officers have assessed all relevant factors and do not consider 
that there are any equality impacts identified. 

 
50 Should Members resolve that a Modification Order be made in 

accordance with the above legislation, this is merely the start of the legal 
process. Once a Modification Order is made, it must be publicised, and 
the owners will have an opportunity to formally object to it. Should 
objections be received, the Modification Order would have to be referred 
to the Secretary of State who would usually hold a Public Inquiry before 
deciding whether or not to confirm the Modification Order. 

 
Assessment of the evidence 

51 The County Council, as Surveying Authority, must make a decision in 
accordance with the case law and relevant legislation, in particular the 
provisions of the 1981 Act and the Human Rights Act 1998.  The only 
considerations that the Council can take into account are those that relate 
to whether the alleged public right of way that is not shown in the map 
and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in 
the area to which the map relates. It would be unlawful to afford weight to 
issues such as the suitability or desirability of the routes subject of the 
application. 

52 In this case it is considered that the most important evidence is the 1815 
Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan (Documents G & H).  The Inclosure 
Award created a Horse Road or Pack and Prime Way and specifically 
assigned it public bridleway status.  
 

53 Whilst the other map-based evidence is corroboratory as to physical 
existence of the route, less weight must be afforded to these in 
accordance with Section 32 of the Highways Act as they were not 
produced for the purposes of showing the status of the route but for other 
purposes, such as taxation. 

54 The objectors have not submitted any evidence of their own which would 
contradict the above Inclosure Award and Plan evidence.  Instead, the 
objections have focussed on the suitability and/or desirability, which 
cannot be taken into consideration when determining historical 
documentary evidence based applications.   

55 It is considered that none of the objections are sufficient to undermine the 
evidential force of the Inclosure Award and Plan which is sufficiently clear 
and precise to demonstrate that a public Bridleway was created along the 

Page 90



route being claimed. There is no evidence of any subsequent stopping 
up of the bridleway since its creation in 1815. 

56 Therefore, it is recommended that the route bring claimed be added to 
the Definitive Map and Statement as a public bridleway. 

Main implications 

Maintenance 

57 If this route is added to the Definitive Map as a Public Bridleway, the 
County Council as Highway Authority will become responsible for the 
maintenance of the surface in line with its status. 

Conclusion 

58 It is considered, after examining all of the available evidence, that on the 
balance of probability the route under investigation known as Chapel 
Pasture Public Bridleway meets the test of section 53(C)(i) and a 
Definitive Map Modification Order should therefore be made to update 
the Definitive Map and Statement to record it as a bridleway. 

Background papers 

 ..\DMMO Application & Evidence 

Other useful documents 

 Previous Cabinet reports / None 

 

Author(s) 

Josephine Upchurch   Tel:  03000 365341 

Mike Ogden     Tel:  03000 265331 

Neil Carter     Tel:  03000 269722 

  

Page 91

https://durhamcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/personal/josephine_upchurch_durham_gov_uk/Documents/Draft%20and%20Final%20HC%20Reports%20and%20Docs/St-John's-Chapel%20-%20Lot%201%20-%20Windyside%20Moor,%20Chapel%20Pasture%20&%20North%20Grain/Chapel%20Pasture/DMMO%20Application%20&%20Evidence


Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

See paragraphs 45, 46, 47, 48, 49 and 50 

Finance 

Durham County Council will be responsible for the initial installation of furniture 

associated with the legal status of the route for the first six months, thereafter 

responsibility reverts to the landowner/occupier, and future maintenance of the 

surface to bridleway standards. 

Consultation 

See paragraphs 5 and 16 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

See paragraph 49 

Climate Change 

N/A 

Human Rights 

See paragraph 48 

Crime and Disorder 

N/A 

Staffing 

N/A 

Accommodation 

N/A 

Risk 

N/A 

Procurement 

N/A 

  

Page 92



Appendix 2:  Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road Summary Sheet 
& Application Form A 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



   

Page 94



Appendix 3: Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road Application (as 
submitted by the applicant) 

 

Page 95



 

Page 96



 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



84

3

86

90

62

77

87
74

69

72

92
83

58

46
80

65

93

91

57 59 67

75
61

73

89

81

55

71

64

76

4

88

6860

63

70

13

82

12

4466

14

64

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

Definitive Map 
Modification 

Application 3/19/097 
Chapel Pasture

Public Bridle Road

Area Postcode/s
DL13 1NN

¯

DMMO Application Route

B

A Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



84

86

90

77

8774

72

92

69

83
62

46

80

65

44

93

91

42

75

73

4589

85

61

79

81

67

71

78

64

76

4

88

68
63

82

70

66

64

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

DMMO Application 
Routes 
3/19/098 
3/19/097
3/19/096

Area Postcode/s
DL13 1NN, DL13 1NW
DL13 1NX, DL13 1RL

¯

DMMO Application Routes 
(3)

B

A

Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From:                                                      com>
Sent:                                                         20 August 2019 13:32
To:                                                            Public Rights of Way
Subject:                                                   Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road
 
Hello we wish to object in the strongest terms to this proposed route on our land.This ground is so wet and boggy we only ever run sheep on it,there are
steep aspects which is unsuitable even for a trials bike when we round sheep up,due to old workings there are a number of steel spikes that s�ck up out of
the ground,this land borders onto our neighbours land and solid dry stone walls are the boundaries,it is a ludicrous idea and if a horse was to come down
and break a leg or similar it would be a nightmare to try and get it out due to the terrain,the NY is 887 368/NY876371,

Regards 

Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Sent from my iPad

Page 110



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

The Church Commissioners for England    27th September 2022 

       

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 111

josephine.upchurch_3
Typewritten text
Landowners and Owner/Occupier



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Mr and Mrs       27th September 2022 

           

Dear Mr and Mrs

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 112



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Mr            27th September 2022 

       

           
 
Dear Mr  

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 113



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Mr        27th September 2022 

        

         

 
Dear Mr 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 114



Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 

 

 

Mr       27th September 2022 

          

Dear Mr 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 115



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Mrs         27th September2022 

       

           
 
Dear Mrs 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 116



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 

 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

         

           

 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 

Page 117



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

         

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 118



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

         

           

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 119



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

           

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 120



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

           

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 121



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

           

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 122



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 

 

Owner/Occupier        27th September 2022 

        

        

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 123



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier        10th October 2022 

         

         

To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 10th November 
2022. 
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me or my colleague (above).   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 124



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:40
To:                                                           uk'
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - BHS (Access) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan Chapel

Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 125

josephine.upchurch_4
Typewritten text
User Groups and Organisations



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

            27th September 2022 

         

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 126



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:40
To: no�ces@ uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL -  - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan

Chapel Pasture PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
6000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 127



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Byways and Bridleways Trust      27th September 2022  

     

        
To Whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 128



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:39
To:                                                           
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs  (BHS Local) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan

Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 129



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Mrs        27th September 2022 

              

       
Dear Mrs

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 130



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:39
To:                                                            
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs  (BHS Local) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan

Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 131



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Mrs       27th September 2022 

            

     
Dear Mrs 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 132



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:39
To:                                                           .uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Ms  (Open Spaces) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan

Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 133



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 

       

Ms        27th September 2022 

          
Dear Ms 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 134



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:39
To:                                                           com
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mr  (Ramblers) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan

Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 135



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

            27th September 2022 

         

           
 
Dear Mr

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 136



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:40
To:                                                            .com
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Clerk (SPC) - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture

PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 137

josephine.upchurch_5
Typewritten text
Local Councillors and Parish Council



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Ms (Clerk)      27th September 2022 

       

        

Dear Ms 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 
Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 138



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:40
To:                                                            Cllr
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr  - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture

PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-6000.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 139



Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Councillor       27th September 2022 

           
 

Dear Cllr 

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 

Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 140



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:40
To:                                                            Cllr
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr  - 3-19-097.pdf; CL Plan Chapel

Pasture PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan Chapel Pasture PBR 1-
6000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 141



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 
 
 
 

Councillor      27th September 2022 

        
 

Dear Cllr 

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – Chapel Pasture 

Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/097) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 142



From:                                                      com>
Sent:                                                         14 November 2022 10:27
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   [EXTERNAL]:Re: josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk sent you

DMMO Applica�ons ad Evidence - Chapel Pasture (Ref 3/19/097)
and North Grain (Ref 3/19/096) via WeTransfer

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hello Josephine 
I think that it is not a good idea to reinstate the bridal path for one there quite a few hidden sink holes
hidden watercourses.
The route is not safe for horses as a lot of the bank has washed away and I round sheep up on a trials
bike and it is just wide enough for the bike and a horse and rider would not be able to go down the
bank as it is too dangerous.
Your sincerely 

 
 
 
On Wed, 2 Nov 2022, 09:11 WeTransfer, <noreply@wetransfer.com> wrote:

josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 
sent you DMMO Applications ad
Evidence - Chapel Pasture (Ref
3/19/097) and North Grain (Ref

3/19/096)
2 items, 16.9 MB in total ・ Expires on 9 November, 2022

Page 143



From:                                                      .com
Sent:                                                         26 October 2022 21:06
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Follow Up Flag:                                     
Flag Status:                                            
 
Dear Josephine
 
Following the Stanhope Parish Council mee�ng I have been asked to send the comments from the
councillors.
 
The councillors wish to object to all three applica�ons that have been sent.
 
Concerns are raised about 4x4 vehicles and motorbikes also using these possible routes.
 
If the fields have cows and young calves in it can be dangerous as cows are very protec�ve and there
have been many cases where peoples lives have been lost.
 
Gates could be le� open or accidentally le� open causing much work for the landowner/farmer
sor�ng stock out.
 
Have the routes actually been walked as some of the ground is unsuitable for horses.
 
The ground behind Pinfold Farm, St Johns Chapel has a beck to cross with a deep gu�er so is very
unsuitable.
 
The councillors do not see the point of adver�sing new routes when there are plenty of exis�ng
routes that need maintaining.
 
Kind regards
 

Clerk to the Parish Council
 
 
 
 
 
From: Josephine Upchurch <josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk> 

 Sent: 17 October 2022 09:47
 To: com

 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Dear Ms
 

Page 144



The British Horse Society is an Appointed Representative of South Essex Insurance Brokers Limited 

 who are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Registered Charity Nos. 210504 and SC038516.  A company limited by guarantee. Registered in England & Wales No. 444742 

Patron Her Majesty The Queen 

 

 

 

 

Fulfilling your passion for horses 

The British Horse Society 

 

Email:  access@bhs.org  

Tel: 

 

 

 

 

13
th

 October 2022 

 

To: 

Josephine Upchurch 

Definitive Map Officer 

Public Rights of Way 

Durham County Council, 

County Hall, 

Durham 

DH1 5UQ 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–North Grain Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/096) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/097) 

 

Dear Josie 

 

Response from the British Horse Society 

 

The British Horse Society fully supports this proposal to add bridleways to the above three areas known as 

Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, North Grain Public Bridle Road and Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road.   

 

The routes were set out and appointed some 200 plus years ago in the Inclosure of 1815, a legal document to this 

day.  It is obvious to us that this Bridleway fell into disuse many years ago when there weren’t many leisure 

horses around as people did not have the means to care for them.  

 

These three routes link cul-de-sac bridleways 90 and 84 to the C28 road (Swinside) and the C27 road (Harthope 

Road) 

This proposal will bring greater safety for those who walk, ride horses and cycle and the future generations can 

also enjoy them. 

 

 - Access and Bridleways Officer 

On Behalf of ‘The British Horse Society’ (Durham) 

Page 145



From:                                                      .uk>
Sent:                                                         29 September 2022 13:08
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   [EXTERNAL]:Re: Consulta�on Le�er - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle

Road, St-Johns-Chapel DMMO - Ref. 3/19/097
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Dear Josephine
 
Thank you for your consulta�on le�er.
 
The Open Spaces Society supports this modifica�on.
 
Yours sincerely
 

Open Spaces Society
Local Correspondent for Teesdale & Wear Valley Districts in Co Durham
 
From: Josephine Upchurch
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:39 PM
To .uk
Cc: Dagmar Richardson
Subject: Consultation Letter - Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-Chapel DMMO - Ref.
3/19/097
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall

Page 146



Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 
 

Customer Notice

We have recently updated our terms and conditions for all our services, including making some important updates to our
privacy notices. To find out more about how we collect, use, share and retain your personal data, visit:
www.durham.gov.uk/dataprivacy 

Help protect our environment by only printing this email if absolutely necessary. The information it contains and any files transmitted with
it are confidential and are only intended for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. It may be unlawful for you to use, share or
copy the information, if you are not authorised to do so. If you receive this email by mistake, please inform the person who sent it at the
above address and then delete the email from your system. Durham County Council takes reasonable precautions to ensure that its
emails are virus free. However, we do not accept responsibility for any losses incurred as a result of viruses we might transmit and
recommend that you should use your own virus checking procedures.

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



Heading

Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road 

DMMO 

Application Evidence

Ref. 3/19/097

P
age 149



Historical Documentary Evidence

Document F – 1799 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Act

P
age 150



P
age 151



P
age 152



P
age 153



P
age 154



Document G – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Award

P
age 155



Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road Transcription

Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road

And we do hereby assign set out and appoint another public Horse Pack and Prime way twenty feet in breadth

as the same is now staked and setout by stakes and land marks and which for distinctions sake we shall

hereinafter refer to and call by the name of Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road beginning at and leading from

the said gate in the boundary wall between the said Chapel Pasture and Windyside Moor called Level gate

and proceeding North Westwards through and over the third allotment hereinafter set out to Peter Allison upon

the said Chapel Pasture 10 and into the said Chapel Pasture East Private Carriage Road and from thence along

the said last mentioned road to its junction with the said Chapel Pasture West Private Carriage Road and from

thence North westwards through and over the third allotment hereinafter set out to John Heatherington of Dadry

Shiels (sic) upon the said Chapel Pasture and through and over the allotment hereinafter set out to Isaac Peat

upon the same pasture to ancient gate in the Boundary Wall between the said Chapel Pasture and Harthope

Moor.

P
age 156



P
age 157



Uses of the Public Bridle Roads

And we do hereby direct and award that all the said several Horse roads or Pack and Prime ways

hereinbefore by us set out and appointed shall for ever hereafter be and continue in the narrowest parts

thereof respectively of the breadth of twenty feet statute measure and that it shall and may be lawful to and

for all persons whomsoever at all times hereafter to pass and repass in upon through over and along the

same respectively on foot and on horseback only at their free wills and pleasures. And we do hereby order

direct and award that the present and all future owners or occupiers of the said several allotments or parcels

of ground through over or along which any of the said several Horse Roads or Pack and Prime ways are set

out as aforesaid shall respectively within twenty days now next ensuring make and place and forever

thereafter uphold maintain and keep or repair good and sufficient well going gates on the line of all such last

mentioned Road in the fences of their several and respective allotments for the more commodious

enjoyment of the same roads respectively.

P
age 158



Document H – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan

P
age 159



Document H.a – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan & Current Definitive Map Overlay

P
age 160



Document I – 1895 1st Edition OS (Ordnance Survey) 

1:2,500 

P
age 161



P
age 162



P
age 163



P
age 164



Document J – Current Map (Magic Map)

P
age 165



Document K  – 2019 Google Imagery

P
age 166



P
age 167



Document L and M – Route Photographs and 2016 Google Street View

The ancient gate in the boundary wall 

Chapel Pasture/Windyside Moor

The boundary wall going westerly which Chapel 

Pasture Public Bridle Road runs along side.

P
age 168



Boundary wall going westerly which Chapel 

Pasture Public Bridle Road runs along side.

From Bridle way 84 looking east along the

boundary way.

P
age 169



BW 84 going southerly to the junction with BW

77 A view of the boundary wall and the Bridleway

84

P
age 170



The approximate route coloured in red for the latter part of ‘Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road’.  From the wall, top 

left across the pasture, down the slope to the gate in the boundary wall.  This is where this Bridle Road meets the 

North Grain Public Bridle Road.  This is better imagery than my photos for this part. 

P
age 171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Highways Committee 

12 December 2022  

Alleged public bridleway, North Grain 

Public Bridle Road, from grid reference 

387576.537170 to C Road C27 (grid 

reference 387492.537198), St-John’s-

Chapel, Stanhope.  

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

Definitive Map Modification Order 

Proposal 

 

Report of Corporate Management Team: Alan Patrickson, 
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Helen Lynch, Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services. 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Weardale 

Purpose of the Report 

1 In this report the Highways Committee is asked to consider all the 
relevant evidence gathered in support of an application to modify the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way by adding a public 
bridleway in the ward of St-John’s-Chapel, Stanhope starting at grid 
reference 387576.537170 to public highway C road C27 (grid reference 
387492.537198) following the route marked A-B in Document A. 

Executive summary 

2 This application seeks to add a route with public bridleway status from 
grid reference 387576.537170 to C Road C27 (grid reference 
387492.537198) in the ward of St-John’s-Chapel, Stanhope to the 
Definitive Map and Statement.  

3 The route to be added is not currently recorded as a Public Right of Way. 
As a standalone application, it connects to the public highway at point B 
on Document A but not at point A on Document A. However, there are 
two other applications also before Members today, Windyside Moor and 
Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Roads, which if agreed, would result in a 
continuous through route from C Road C28, St-John’s-Chapel to C Road 
C27, St-John’s-Chapel, point A to B on Document B. 

Page 173

Agenda Item 7



4 A pre-consultation objection was received from a Ms J Martin (affected 
landowner) shortly after receiving a Notification Form when the 
application was submitted (Document C.1) 

5 A consultation on the proposed addition was carried out with local 
Councillors, the Parish Council, landowners, and, user groups and 
organisations (Document C.2, C.3 and C.4) which resulted in objections 
and support to the proposed amendment to modify the Definitive Map and 
Statement.  

6 Objections were received from Mr D Hughes (one of the landowners 
affected) and Stanhope Parish Council (Document D), and support has 
been expressed by The British Horse Society and The Open Spaces 
Society (Document E) to the proposed addition.  

7 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council are based on the suitability and/or desirability of the route.  

8 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council cannot be afforded weight in the assessment of the application 
as the legislation does not allow for objections based on suitability and/or 
desirability.   

Recommendation(s) 

9 It is recommended that the Committee resolves to make a Definitive Map 
Modification Order to amend the Definitive Map and Statement by way of 
adding a public bridleway under section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. 

10 Note that the Definitive Map Modification Order will be referred to the 
Secretary of State for determination in the event objections are made or 
confirmed as unopposed if no such objections are received. 

Background 

Application 

11 A Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) application was 
submitted by Mrs S Briggs, on behalf of the British Horse Society, in July 
2019. Historical documentary evidence was submitted to support the 
application, the most important evidence being the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan. The applicant wishes that the Definitive Map 
and Statement be modified to reflect what they believe should be a public 
bridleway.  

12 The section of bridleway to be recorded as a public bridleway is 
referenced A-B in (Document A).  

Page 174



13 The application route, at point A in Document A, does not currently 
connect to the public highway. However, at point B on Document A the 
route does terminate on a public highway, C Road C27. There are two 
other DMMO applications being considered today, which also rely on the 
1815 Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan to demonstrate their historical 
legal status.   

14 When considering the evidence that has been submitted in relation to this 
application, it is clear that a public bridleway was legally set out. When 
considering the evidence that has been summitted in support of this 
application in conjunction with the other two DMMO applications, it is 
clear that a continuous through route, with public bridleway rights, was 
legally created with both ends terminating on a public highway. 

Consultation and Objections 

15 A pre consultation objection was received from a Ms J Martin (affected 
landowner) in 2019 shortly after receiving a Notification Form B when the 
application was submitted (Document C.1).  

16 Consultations on the proposed upgrade were carried out with the Local 
Councillors, landowners/occupiers, and user groups/organisations 
(Document C.2, C.3 and C.4).   

17 The consultations resulted in objections from Mr D Hughes (one of the 
landowners affected) and Stanhope Parish Council (Document D) and 
support has been expressed by The British Horse Society and The Open 
Spaces Society (Document E) to the proposed addition. 

18 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council do not refute the evidence submitted in support of the application 
and have been based on the potential suitability and/or desirability of the 
route.  

19 The objections lodged by Ms J Martin, Mr D Hughes and Stanhope Parish 
Council cannot be afforded weight as the legislation does not allow for 
objections based on suitability and/or desirability to be taken into account.  

20 The only considerations that the Council can take into account are 
those that relate to whether the alleged public right way ought to be 
shown as a bridleway. The key legal test in section 53(3)(C)(i) is that 
a right of way that is not shown in the map and statement subsists 
or is reasonably alleged to subsist over in land in the area to which 
the map relates, being a right of way to which this part applies.  It 
would be unlawful to consider issues such as the suitability or 
desirability of the routes subject of the application. 

 

 

Page 175



The Route  

21 The route to be added continues from Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road 
(grid reference 387576.537170) and proceeds in a general westerly 
direction, traverses two tributaries, Harthope Burn and Harthope West 
Grain and terminates on public highway C Road C27 (grid reference 
387492.537198).  

22 The route is situated on the fell side, from east to west it sits between 360 
and 370 m.a.s.l (metres above sea level). The route was set out in the 
Inclosure Award as a Horse Road or Pack and Prime Way and was 
assigned public bridleway status with a stipulated width of 20ft (6.1m). 

23 The surface of the route is predominantly a mixture of rough, rocky 
pasture, where it crosses Harthope Burn and Harthope West Grain syke.  

 

Documentary Evidence 

24 Document F –1799 Weardale Inclosure Act 
Park and Forest of Weardale (Act 39 Geo III) – DRC D/CG 
32/40 (previously DCG 13/492) 
 

25 Inclosure Acts were produced to allow for the consolidation of what was 
once open land into sperate parcels that could be individually owned.  
 

26 Document G – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Award 
Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure Award – PAL 
1/3/2 

27 The earliest and most important legal documentary evidence which 
describes and depicts the application route is the 1815 Weardale 
Inclosure Award and Plan.  
 

28 Inclosure awards are legal documents, the purpose of which were to 
record the reorganisation and distribution of parcels of land in addition to 
providing legal proof and evidence of ownership. They also typically 
created highways. The details described in many Inclosure Awards 
consisted of Inclosure boundaries, public and private highways, and their 
uses, rights of way, water courses and drainage etc, as well as details of 
the landowners. Most Inclosure awards are accompanied by Inclosure 
plans/maps and provide a pictorial view of the details described in the 
Inclosure Award. 

 
29 The award describes North Grain Public Bridle Road as a Horse Road 

or Pack and Prime Way and states “And we do hereby assign set out and 
appoint another public Horse Road or pack and prime way twenty feet in 
breadth as the same is now staked and set out by stakes and land marks 

Page 176



and which for distinctions sake we shall hereinafter refer to and call by 
the name of North Grain Public Bridle Road beginning at and leading 
from the said Harthope Public Carriage Road at the north end of the 
Bridge lately built across the North Grain and proceeding Eastwards to 
an ancient Gate in the Boundary wall between the said Harthope Moor 
and Chapel Pasture at the end of the said Chapel Pasture Public 
Bridle Road”.  
 

30 Harthope Public Carriage Road, or just Harthope Road, as described in 
the Inclosure material has been named Road C27, mentioned previously 
in this report, on the Durham County Councils map of Adopted Highways. 

 
31 Document H – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Plan 

      Park and Forest of Weardale Inclosure plans – PAL 1/3/2 
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d 
&canvas=t2t2j62sd835  - Sheet 9. 
 

32 On the plan North Grain Public Bridle Road is clearly shown heading in a 
north westerly direction leading on from Chapel Pasture Public Bridle 
Road and crosses Harthope Burn and Harthope West Grain Syke before 
joining Harthope Public Carriage Road (Harthope Road). These features 
are shown, on both the 1815 Inclosure Plan and on current day maps. 
Additionally, the surrounding Inclosure boundaries remain, for the most 
part, as there were some 200 years ago with only minor alterations (see 
Document H.a)  

33 Document H.a – 1815 Weardale Inclosure Plan and current day 
Definitive Map overlay). 

34 This overlay shows the alignment of the physical features, such as field 
boundaries, highways and water courses, that are depicted on the 
Inclosure Plan and current day maps and demonstrates the accuracy of 
the location of the routes being referred to.  

35 Document I – 1895 1st Edition OS (Ordnance Survey) 1:2,500 
(www.old-maps.co.uk) Sheet XXXIII.13 and Area Book Stanhope 
Parish Forest Quarter DRO D/CG13/322 
 

36 OS maps were produced pursuant to an Act of Parliament as an official 
survey of England, Wales and Scotland. Originally produced under the 
Board of Ordnance to aid with military manoeuvres in preparation for 
rebellions or war in the late 1700s. By the mid to late 1800s OS maps 
had evolved considerably and, due to the expense of surveys and the 
production of revised editions, Ordnance Survey had to diversify. This 
meant producing maps that could be sold to the public as the revenue 
would help fund revisions. It is suggested that historic documents, maps, 
plans and interviews with locals were used to identify, clarify, and depict, 
through use of shading, different classifications of highways. However, 

Page 177

https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835
https://iiif.durham.ac.uk/index.html?manifest=t2m47429954d&canvas=t2t2j62sd835


there are no references that conclusively clarify the methods applied by 
the surveyors to determine the status of a highway.  

 
37 North Grain Public Bridle Road is shown on the above-mentioned historic 

OS map. However, its description has not been included in the 
accompanying area book. The details of the features associated with the 
plots of land are described as - Plot 2114 – Rough Pasture.  
 

38 Other plots do not contain mention of any roads, tracks or bridleways in 
the area book, however, tracks other than the route being applied for 
have been mapped but not mentioned in the area book. As with the 
Windyside Moor application, plots that contained tracks and water 
courses for example have been attributed a description of ‘Rough Pasture 
&c’, &c being the equivalent to etc to denote that there are other features 
associated with the plots. It is unclear as to why the ‘&c’ was omitted from 
the description of certain plots that have other features associated with 
them. 
 

39 Ordnance Survey maps on their own are not conclusive evidence that a 
public right of way exists, but represent evidence of what was on the 
ground at the time and therefore their evidential value is corroboratory.  

 
 
40 Document J – Current Definitive Map  

                         https://www.durham.gov.uk/definitivemap 
 

41 The route being applied for, which is documented and shown in the 
Inclosure Award and Plan, has been highlighted in red on an extract of 
Durham County Councils Definitive Map. However, the Definitive Map 
itself does not show the physical existence of the application route.  

 
42 Document K – Current OS Maps 

                                   www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk 
 
43 As above 
 
44 Document L – 2016 google street view 

45 The photographic evidence provides a visual representation of the 
application route. Some of the physical features that may have once been 
associated with the historic route may not be visible/no longer insitu. 

Legal Framework 

46 Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, the County Council as Surveying Authority has a duty to keep the 
Definitive Map and Statement under review and is required to make a 
Modification Order under Section 53 (3)(c)(i) on the discovery by the 
authority of evidence which when considered with all other relevant 

Page 178

https://www.durham.gov.uk/definitivemap
http://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/


evidence available to them shows that a right of way which is not shown 
in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist 
over land in the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to 
which this part applies.  

47 Section 32 of the Highways Act 1980 deals with the consideration of 
documentary evidence when determining whether a highway has been 
dedicated. It allows for any maps, plans or history of a locality or other 
relevant document to be tendered in evidence and for appropriate weight 
to be placed on the document including the antiquity of the document, the 
status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it was created 
and the source from which it has been stored and produced. 
 

48 Once a highway comes into existence, it can only cease to be a highway 
in certain circumstances, such as by way of a formal stopping up 
procedure.  The fact that the highway may have fallen into disrepair, 
disuse and/or seems physically to not exist at all has no impact upon its 
status as highway. 

49 The Human Rights Act is of relevance. Whilst article 1 to the first protocol 
(peaceful enjoyment of property) and article 8 (right to respect for family, 
private life and home) are engaged, it is important to note that these rights 
are qualified, not absolute, which means that they can be interfered with 
in so far as such interference is in accordance with domestic law and is 
necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights and 
freedoms of others.  It is considered that any interference occasioned by 
the making of a Modification Order is both in accordance with domestic 
law (the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981) and is in the public interest 
as it is necessary in a democratic society for the protection of the rights 
and freedoms of others, namely the public who wish to use the way. 

 
50 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires public authorities when 

exercising their functions to have due regard to the need to i) eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct, ii) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and 
iii) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share that characteristic.  In this 
instance, officers have assessed all relevant factors and do not consider 
that there are any equality impacts identified. 

 
51 Should Members resolve that a Modification Order be made in 

accordance with the above legislation, this is merely the start of the legal 
process. Once a Modification Order is made, it must be publicised, and 
the owners will have an opportunity to formally object to it. Should 
objections be received, the Modification Order would have to be referred 
to the Secretary of State who would usually hold a Public Inquiry before 
deciding whether or not to confirm the Modification Order. 

Page 179



 

Assessment of the evidence 

52 The County Council, as Surveying Authority, must make a decision in 
accordance with the case law and relevant legislation, in particular the 
provisions of the 1981 Act and the Human Rights Act 1998.  The only 
considerations that the Council can take into account are those that relate 
to whether the alleged public right of way that is not shown in the map 
and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in 
the area to which the map relates. It would be unlawful to afford weight to 
issues such as the suitability or desirability of the routes subject of the 
application. 

53 In this case it is considered that the most important evidence is the 1815 
Weardale Inclosure Award and Plan (Documents G & H).  The Inclosure 
Award created a Horse Road or Pack and Prime Way and also 
specifically assigned it public bridleway status.  
 

54 Whilst the other map-based evidence, particularly the first edition OS 
from 1895, is corroboratory as to physical existence of the route, less 
weight must be afforded to these in accordance with Section 32 of the 
Highways Act as they were not produced for the purposes of showing the 
status of the route but for other purposes, such as taxation. For the same 
reasons, the absence of the route from later editions of the OS plans is 
not conclusive as to lack of highway status of the route.  

55 The objectors have not submitted any evidence of their own which would 
contradict the above Inclosure Award and Plan evidence.  Instead, the 
objections have focussed the suitability and desirability, which cannot be 
taken into consideration when determining historical documentary 
evidence based applications.  

56 It is considered that none of the objections are sufficient to undermine the 
evidential force of the Inclosure Award which is sufficiently clear and 
precise to demonstrate that a public Bridleway was created along the 
route claimed. There is no evidence of any subsequent stopping up of the 
bridleway since its creation in 1815. 

57 Therefore, it is recommended that the route bring claimed be added to 
the Definitive Map and Statement as a public bridleway. 

Main implications 

Maintenance 

58 If this route is added to the Definitive Map as a Public Bridleway, the 
County Council as Highway Authority will become responsible for the 
maintenance of the surface in line with its status. 

Page 180



 

Conclusion 

59 It is considered, after examining all of the available evidence, that on the 
balance of probability the route under investigation known as North Grain 
Public Bridle Road meets the test of section 53(C)(i) and a Definitive Map 
Modification Order should therefore be made to update the Definitive Map 
and Statement to record it as a bridleway. 

Background papers 

 ..\DMMO Application & Evidence 

Other useful documents 

 Previous Cabinet reports / None 

Author(s) 

Josephine Upchurch   Tel:  03000 365341 

Mike Ogden     Tel:  03000 265331 

Neil Carter     Tel:  03000 269722 

  

Page 181

https://durhamcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/personal/josephine_upchurch_durham_gov_uk/Documents/Draft%20and%20Final%20HC%20Reports%20and%20Docs/St-John's-Chapel%20-%20Lot%201%20-%20Windyside%20Moor,%20Chapel%20Pasture%20&%20North%20Grain/North%20Grain/DMMO%20Application%20&%20Evidence


Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

See paragraphs 46, 47, 48, 49, 50 and 51. 

Finance 

Durham County Council will be responsible for the initial installation of furniture 

associated with the upgraded legal status for the first six months, thereafter 

responsibility reverts to the landowner/occupier, and future maintenance of the 

surface to bridleway standards. 

Consultation 

See paragraphs 5 and 16 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

See paragraph 50 

Climate Change 

N/A 

Human Rights 

See paragraph 49 

Crime and Disorder 

N/A 

Staffing 

N/A 

Accommodation 

N/A 

Risk 

N/A 

Procurement 

N/A 

  

Page 182



Appendix 2:  North Grain Public Bridle Road Summary Sheet & 
Application Form A 

 

 

  

Page 183



 

 

 

 

Page 184



Appendix 3:  North Grain Public Bridle Road Application (as 
submitted by the applicant) 

 

 

Page 185



  

 

 

Page 186



84
62

77

58

86
74

69

72

92

54

80

19

65

51

57

93

55

91

59 67 3

87

75

61

5

73

16

85

1252

79

81

71
78

53

49

64

15

76

46860

63

88

620

70

13

82

2

66

14

90

59

64

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

Definitive Map 
Modification 

Application 3/19/096 - 
North Grain Public 

Bridle Road

Area Postcode/s: 
DL13 1RL, DL13 1NN

¯

DMMO Application Route
B

A
Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 187



T
his page is intentionally left blank



84

86

90

77

8774

72

92

69

83
62

46

80

65

44

93

91

42

75

73

4589

85

61

79

81

67

71

78

64

76

4

88

68
63

82

70

66

64

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey LA 100049055

Alan Patrickson
Corporate Director
Neighbourhoods and 
Climate Change
Durham County Council
County Hall
Durham DH1 5UQ

DMMO Application 
Routes 
3/19/098 
3/19/097
3/19/096

Area Postcode/s
DL13 1NN, DL13 1NW
DL13 1NX, DL13 1RL

¯

DMMO Application Routes 
(3)

B

A

Scale: 1:12,500

Adopted Highway
Applications_claims
FP BW
RB v^ ^ BY

P
age 189



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From:                                                      com>
Sent:                                                         20 August 2019 13:32
To:                                                            Public Rights of Way
Subject:                                                   Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road
 
Hello we wish to object in the strongest terms to this proposed route on our land.This ground is so wet and boggy we only ever run sheep on it,there are
steep aspects which is unsuitable even for a trials bike when we round sheep up,due to old workings there are a number of steel spikes that s�ck up out of
the ground,this land borders onto our neighbours land and solid dry stone walls are the boundaries,it is a ludicrous idea and if a horse was to come down
and break a leg or similar it would be a nightmare to try and get it out due to the terrain,the NY is 887 368/NY876371

 
Regards

Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Sent from my iPad

Page 198



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

The Church Commissioners for England    27th September 2022 

       

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 199

josephine.upchurch_6
Typewritten text
Landowners and Owners/Occupiers



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Mr             27th September 2022 

       

           
 
Dear Mr

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 200



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Mrs        27th September 2022 

       

           
 
Dear Mrs

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 201



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Owner/Occupier       27th September 2022 

      

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 202



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                           org.uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL -  - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan North Grain

PBR 1-5000.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-12,500.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 203

josephine.upchurch_7
Typewritten text
Organisations and User Groups



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

            27th September 2022 

         

           
 
To whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 204



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To: org.uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL -  - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan

North Grain PBR 1-5000.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
To Whom it may concern
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 205



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

Byways and Bridleways Trust      27th September 2022  

     

        
To Whom it may concern 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 206



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                           
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs  (BHS Local) - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan

North Grain PBR 1-5000.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 207



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Mrs       27th September 2022 

              

        
Dear Mrs

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 208



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                           
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mrs (BHS Local) - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan

North Grain PBR 1-5000.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-
12,500.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mrs
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 209



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Mrs       27th September 2022 

            

     
Dear Mrs

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 210



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                           .uk
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Ms  (Open Spaces) - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan

North Grain PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-
5000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 211



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 

Ms                  27th September 2022  

          
Dear Ms 

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 212



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                           .com
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Mr  (Ramblers) - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan

North Grain PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-
5000.pdf

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Mr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 213



Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

             27th September 2022 

         

           
 
Dear Mr

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 
 

Page 214



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                            com'
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Clerk (SPC) - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan North Grain

PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-5000.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 215

josephine.upchurch_8
Typewritten text
Local Councillors and Parish Council



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

Ms (Clerk)      27th September 2022 

      

       

Dear Ms

 
Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 
Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 
Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 
 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 216



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                            Cllr
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr  - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan North Grain

PBR 1-5000.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-12,500.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 217



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

Councillor       27th September 2022 

        

Dear Cllr 

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 

Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 218



From:                                                       Josephine Upchurch
Sent:                                                         27 September 2022 14:41
To:                                                            Cllr
Cc:                                                             Dagmar Richardson
Subject:                                                   Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-

Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
A�achments:                                         2022 09 27 CL - Cllr - 3-19-096.pdf; CL Plan North

Grain PBR 1-12,500.pdf; CL Plan North Grain PBR 1-5000.pdf
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
Dear Cllr 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham
DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 

Page 219



 

Access and Rights of Way Team, Neighbourhoods and Climate Change 

Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UQ - Main Telephone 03000 260 000 

Text Messaging Service 07860 093 073.  www.durham.gov.uk 

 
 

Contact: Josephine Upchurch/Dagmar Richardson 
Direct Tel: 03000 265341/ 265 340 

    email: Josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 

Dagmar.richardson@durham.gov.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 
 
 
 

Councillor      27th September 2022 

         

Dear Cllr 

 

Consultation – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - Proposed Modification to the Definitive 

Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way to add a public bridleway – North Grain Public 

Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/096) 

 
I have received evidence in support of the council making a Modification Order to the Definitive 
Map and Statement under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
The evidence in support of the Right of Way is based on historical documentary evidence.  
  
Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the County Council 
has a duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and make 
appropriate modifications by Order.  
  
I am currently seeking the views of local councillors, the Parish Council, affected landowners and 
user groups/organisations and will be pleased to include any comments you may wish to offer 
regarding the proposed modification to the Highways Committee.  A draft report will be 
composed and will incorporate any views, objections and additional evidence submitted by those 
in receipt of this consultation.   
 
Please submit your views, objections, support or additional evidence by Thursday 27th October 
2022.  
 
Please note that if you do make representations, then by virtue of the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985, the County Council may make them available for public inspection. 
Additionally, they may also be disclosable under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
If you have any queries or wish to discuss the matter, please contact me.   
 
 
Your Sincerely  

 
 
 
 

Josephine Upchurch 
Definitive Map Officer 

Page 220



From:                                                      .com>
Sent:                                                         14 November 2022 10:27
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   [EXTERNAL]:Re: josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk sent you

DMMO Applica�ons ad Evidence - Chapel Pasture (Ref 3/19/097)
and North Grain (Ref 3/19/096) via WeTransfer

 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hello Josephine 
I think that it is not a good idea to reinstate the bridal path for one there quite a few hidden sink holes
hidden watercourses.
The route is not safe for horses as a lot of the bank has washed away and I round sheep up on a trials
bike and it is just wide enough for the bike and a horse and rider would not be able to go down the
bank as it is too dangerous.
Your sincerely 

 
 
 
On Wed, 2 Nov 2022, 09:11 WeTransfer, <noreply@wetransfer.com> wrote:

josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk 
sent you DMMO Applications ad
Evidence - Chapel Pasture (Ref
3/19/097) and North Grain (Ref

3/19/096)
2 items, 16.9 MB in total ・ Expires on 9 November, 2022

Page 221



From:                                                      .com
Sent:                                                         26 October 2022 21:06
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Follow Up Flag:                                    
Flag Status:                                           
 
Dear Josephine
 
Following the Stanhope Parish Council mee�ng I have been asked to send the comments from the
councillors.
 
The councillors wish to object to all three applica�ons that have been sent.
 
Concerns are raised about 4x4 vehicles and motorbikes also using these possible routes.
 
If the fields have cows and young calves in it can be dangerous as cows are very protec�ve and there
have been many cases where peoples lives have been lost.
 
Gates could be le� open or accidentally le� open causing much work for the landowner/farmer
sor�ng stock out.
 
Have the routes actually been walked as some of the ground is unsuitable for horses.
 
The ground behind Pinfold Farm, St Johns Chapel has a beck to cross with a deep gu�er so is very
unsuitable.
 
The councillors do not see the point of adver�sing new routes when there are plenty of exis�ng
routes that need maintaining.
 
Kind regards
 

Clerk to the Parish Council
 
 
 
 
 
From: Josephine Upchurch <josephine.upchurch@durham.gov.uk> 

 Sent: 17 October 2022 09:47
 To: com

 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]:Bridle Ways - St Johns Chapel
 
Dear Ms 
 

Page 222



The British Horse Society is an Appointed Representative of South Essex Insurance Brokers Limited 

 who are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Registered Charity Nos. 210504 and SC038516.  A company limited by guarantee. Registered in England & Wales No. 444742 

Patron Her Majesty The Queen 

 

 

 

 

Fulfilling your passion for horses 

The British Horse Society 

 

Email:  access@bhs.org  

Tel: 

 

 

 

 

13
th

 October 2022 

 

To: 

Josephine Upchurch 

Definitive Map Officer 

Public Rights of Way 

Durham County Council, 

County Hall, 

Durham 

DH1 5UQ 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/098 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel (3/19/098) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/096 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–North Grain Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/096) 

 

Ref: NCC/SH/ROW/JU/3/19/097 

 

Consultation –Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 -Proposed Modification to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public 

Rights of Way to add a public bridleway–Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, St Johns Chapel(3/19/097) 

 

Dear Josie 

 

Response from the British Horse Society 

 

The British Horse Society fully supports this proposal to add bridleways to the above three areas known as 

Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, North Grain Public Bridle Road and Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road.   

 

The routes were set out and appointed some 200 plus years ago in the Inclosure of 1815, a legal document to this 

day.  It is obvious to us that this Bridleway fell into disuse many years ago when there weren’t many leisure 

horses around as people did not have the means to care for them.  

 

These three routes link cul-de-sac bridleways 90 and 84 to the C28 road (Swinside) and the C27 road (Harthope 

Road) 

This proposal will bring greater safety for those who walk, ride horses and cycle and the future generations can 

also enjoy them. 

 

 - Access and Bridleways Officer 

On Behalf of ‘The British Horse Society’ (Durham) 

Page 223



From:                                                      .uk>
Sent:                                                         29 September 2022 13:11
To:                                                            Josephine Upchurch
Subject:                                                   [EXTERNAL]:Re: Consulta�on Le�er - North Grain Public Bridle

Road, St-Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
 
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up
Flag Status:                                             Completed
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza�on. Do not click links or open a�achments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Dear Josephine
 
Thank you for your consulta�on le�er.
 
The Open Spaces Society supports this modifica�on.
 
Yours sincerely
 

Open Spaces Society
Local Correspondent for Teesdale & Wear Valley Districts in Co Durham
 
From: Josephine Upchurch
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 2:40 PM
To: .uk
Cc: Dagmar Richardson
Subject: Consultation Letter - North Grain Public Bridle Road, St-Johns-Chapel - Ref 3/19/096
 
Dear Ms 
 
Please find a�ached the consulta�on le�er and maps for the abovemen�oned DMMO.
 
 
Kind regards
 
 
Josephine Upchurch
 
Defini�ve Map Officer
Access & Rights of Way
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change
County Hall
Durham

Page 224



DH1 5UQ
 
Direct 03000 265341
 
 
Switchboard 03000 260000
www.durham.gov.uk/prow
 
 
 

Customer Notice

We have recently updated our terms and conditions for all our services, including making some important updates to our
privacy notices. To find out more about how we collect, use, share and retain your personal data, visit:
www.durham.gov.uk/dataprivacy 

Help protect our environment by only printing this email if absolutely necessary. The information it contains and any files transmitted with
it are confidential and are only intended for the person or organisation to whom it is addressed. It may be unlawful for you to use, share or
copy the information, if you are not authorised to do so. If you receive this email by mistake, please inform the person who sent it at the
above address and then delete the email from your system. Durham County Council takes reasonable precautions to ensure that its
emails are virus free. However, we do not accept responsibility for any losses incurred as a result of viruses we might transmit and
recommend that you should use your own virus checking procedures.

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



Heading

North Grain Public Bridle Road 

DMMO 

Application Evidence

Ref. 3/19/096

P
age 227



Historical Documentary Evidence

Document F – 1799 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Act

P
age 228



P
age 229



P
age 230



P
age 231



P
age 232



Document G – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Award

P
age 233



North Grain Public Bridle Road Transcription

And we do hereby assign set out and appoint another public Horse Road or pack and prime way twenty feet in breadth as

the same is now staked and set out by stakes and land marks and which for distinctions sake we shall hereinafter refer to

and call by the name of North Grain Public Bridle Road beginning at and leading from the said Harthope Public Carriage

Road at the north end of the Bridge lately built across the North Grain and proceeding Eastwards to an ancient Gate in 

the Boundary wall between the said Harthope Moor and Chapel Pasture at the end of the said Chapel pasture Public

Bridle Road.

P
age 234



P
age 235



And we do hereby direct and award that all the said several Horse roads or Pack and Prime ways hereinbefore

by us set out and appointed shall for ever hereafter be and continue in the narrowest parts thereof respectively of

the breadth of twenty feet statute measure and that it shall and may be lawful to and for all persons whomsoever

at all times hereafter to pass and repass in upon through over and along the same respectivley on foot and on

horseback only at their free wills and pleasures. And we do hereby order direct and award that the present and

all future owners or occupiers of the said several allotments or parcels of ground through over or along which any

of the said several Horse Roads or Pack and Prime ways are set out as aforesaid shall respectivley within twenty

days now next ensuring make and place and forever thereafter uphold maintain and keep or repair good and

sufficient well going gates on the line of all such last mentioned Road in the fences of their several and respective

allotments for the more commodious enjoyment of the same roads respectivley.

Uses of the Public Bridle Roads

P
age 236



Document H – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan

P
age 237



Document H.a – 1815 Park and Forest Weardale Inclosure Plan and Definitive Map Overlay

P
age 238



Document I – 1895 1st Edition OS (Ordnance Survey) 1:2,500 and Area Book Stanhope Parish Forest Quarter

P
age 239



Plot Description

Plot 2114 – Rough Pasture

This plot clearly shows tracks 

within as well as stepping stones 

and streams

P
age 240



Document J – Current Definitive Map 

P
age 241



Document K – Current Map (Magic Map)

P
age 242



Document L – 2016 Goole Street 

View

The approximate route coloured in red for the latter part of ‘Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road’.  From the wall, top 

left across the pasture, down the slope to the gate in the boundary wall.  This is where this Bridle Road meets the 

North Grain Public Bridle Road.  This is better imagery than my photos for this part. 

P
age 243



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 November 2022
	5 Alleged Public Bridleway, Windyside Moor Public Bridle Road, from Road C28 to grid reference 388757.536877, St-John's-Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map Modification Order Proposal) - Report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Head of Legal and Democratic Services.
	Document A -  Windyside Moor PBR 1-12,500
	Document B - Application Through Route 1-12,500
	Document C.1 - Pre Con. HH Land & Estate
	Document C.2 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.3 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.4 - Consultation Letters
	Document D - Objections
	Document E - Support
	Microsoft PowerPoint - Document F to L - Windyside Moor Evidence

	6 Alleged Public Bridleway, Chapel Pasture Public Bridle Road, from grid reference 388757.536877 to grid reference 387576.537170, St-John's-Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map Modification Order Proposal) - Report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
	Document A -  Chapel Pasture PBR 1-12,500
	Document B - Application Through Route 1-12,500
	Document C.1 - Pre Consultation Objecton
	Document C.2 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.3 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.4 - Consultation Letters
	Document D - Objections
	Document E - Support
	Microsoft PowerPoint - Document F to L - Chapel Pasture Evidence

	7 Alleged Public Bridleway, North Grain Public Bridle Road, from grid reference 387576.537170 to C Road C27 (grid reference 387492.537198), St-John's Chapel, Stanhope (Definitive Map Modification Order Proposal) - Report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhoods and Climate Change and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
	Document A - North Grain PBR 1-12,500
	Document B - Application Through Route 1-12,500
	Document C.1 - Pre Consultation Objection
	Document C.2 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.3 - Consultation Letters
	Document C.4 - Consultation Letters
	Document D - Objections
	Document E - Support
	Microsoft PowerPoint - Document F to L - North Grain Evidence


